
Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 

AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Monday, April 15th, 2024 

In-Person, Large Room,  

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

 VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS      

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

 www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits.  

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Bernier

II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS:

A) Welcome everyone to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council

action (making motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.

B) Trivia Question – Council Vice President Dann

III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION:
Note – All Times are approximate

A) Update from Public Works Superintendent Matt Auman– 10 minutes

B) Update from Public Works Assistant Superintendent Julie Brooks– 5 minutes

C) Service Line Inventory Project Overview– 10 minutes

D) Governor’s Park Baseball Field Use-Nate Frantz– 15 minutes

E) Teener League Field Agreement Amendment– 5 minutes

F) Teener League Press Box/ Dugout/Concession Stands-Change of paint color– 5 minutes

G) Armory Building 2nd Floor Plans– 5 minutes

IV. ADJOURNMENT

The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is

scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 1 of 117

http://www.cnet1.org/


 

 

 

1 of 6 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Lease Agreement ("Agreement") dated this 3rd day of 

January, 2023, by and between the Bellefonte Borough, a Borough 

existing under and pursuant to the Borough Code, as amended, 8 

Pa.C.S.A. Section 101 et seq., with administrative offices located 

at 236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 ("Lessor") 

and Bellefonte Teener League Board of Directors, a 501 c (3) 

organization with its location at 124-126 John Montgomery Ward 

Lane, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania ("Lessee"). 

1. LEASED PREMISES.  Lessor leases to Lessee upon the terms 

and conditions contained in this Agreement, a tract of land 

situated in Bellefonte Borough, Centre County, Pennsylvania, 

containing approximately 3.5 acres, and depicted more specifically 

on Exhibit A which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, to 

include in particular the Teener Field Baseball Complex and its 

support facilities ("Leased Premises"). 

2. TERM OF LEASE.  The term is one (1) year, commencing on 

January 31, 2023 and ending on January 30, 2024, unless terminated 

sooner by written agreement of the parties, as provided herein, or 

as otherwise permitted by law.  The agreement will automatically 

renew every year. If either party wishes to terminate the 

agreement, they shall provide the other party 90-days notice. 

The term is eleven (11) years, commencing on January 1, 2024 

and ending on December 31, 2034, unless terminated sooner by 

written agreement of the parties, as provided herein, or as 

otherwise permitted by law.  The Lessor shall provide Lessee a 

three (3) year notice at the eight (8) year mark if it wishes to 

terminate the agreement.  If the Lessor does not provide notice 

at the 8 eight-year mark for termination, the agreement will 

automatically be renewed for an additional three (3) years (for a 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 2 of 117



 

 

 

2 of 6 

total of 14 years) before expiration and requiring a new agreement. 

Not less than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of the term 

the parties shall meet to discuss the nature of Lessee’s use during 

the initial term of the Agreement, and whether it would be in the 

interests of both parties and the public at large for the initial 

term to be extended, whether for a comparatively short term or for 

a longer term. 

3. RENTAL PAYMENT/CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS AND 

UPGRADES/ROUTINE CARE AND MAINTENANCE.  Lessee shall pay to Lessor 

the sum of One ($1.00) U.S. Dollar for each year as basic rental 

for the term of the Agreement. 

Lessee shall, as additional consideration for the Agreement, 

make at its expense such repairs, additions, installations, 

upgrades, removals, and/or replacements, including, but not 

limited to, any or all of the following components of the Leased 

Premises: 

 a. dugouts; 

 b. fences; 

 c. electric service; within the concession stand’s 

electrical room, not include any underground service conduit 

and/or service lines. 

 d. scoreboard; 

 e. field;  

 f. bleachers; 

g.   concession stands; 

h.   lighting; and 

i.   pressbox. 

Prior to undertaking any of the aforementioned work, Lessee 

shall discuss its plans with Lessor, and receive input therefrom.  

It is understood and agreed, however, that Lessee retains the 

discretion to do the aforementioned work, and how so much of it, 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 3 of 117



 

 

 

3 of 6 

and in whatsoever manner, it deems to be appropriate.  The 

intention of Lessee is, in the first instance, to make the facility 

comply with Teener Baseball Club standards and requirements, and 

to improve and upgrade the baseball facility and its support 

facilities. 

Lessee shall be, as additional consideration, responsible at its 

expense for and shall perform routine maintenance and care of the 

Leased Premises. Lessee shall be responsible for the trash removal 

from the dugout and the immediate grounds surrounding the Premises 

after all games and practices. Lessee to dispose of refuse in a 

dumpster provided and funded by Lessor. Lessor shall be 

responsible for the trash removal from the dumpster (or 95- Gallon 

Containers. Lessor shall provide Lessee with onsite water 

resources to be included and funded as part of this agreement. 

Lessor shall be responsible for mowing the grass outside of Tanner 

Field fences on a schedule considered routine for the Parks 

Department. 

4. USE BY LESSEE.  Lessee shall use the Leased Premises as 

a baseball field, both for practice and competition, and such other 

ancillary use or uses that are not inconsistent therewith, and are 

not in violation of any applicable statute, rule, regulation, or 

ordinance.  It is understood and agreed that Lessee is not the 

sole and exclusive user of the Leased Premises and that other 

baseball teams may request to use the field.  Any other user must 

receive permission from the Bellefonte Teener Club Board (BTBC) 

but use should be permitted unless it interferes with BTBC 

operations.  The BTBC may request compensation to offset 

maintenance costs. 

      5.  USE BY OTHERS.  So long as the use by others does not 

conflict with Lessee's use (see Section 4), other groups, including 

but not limited to the Bellefonte High School Junior High 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 4 of 117



 

 

 

4 of 6 

(priority) and Bellefonte High School Junior Varsity, may use the 

Leased Premises in accordance with Lessor's usual and customary 

facility use rules and regulations. To the extent that other 

users damage the Lease Premises, beyond damage that is usual and 

customary when a baseball facility is used and would be considered 

a part of routine maintenance, or it is damaged by third parties 

who were not authorized to be on or use the baseball facilities, 

Lessor shall be responsible for the cost thereof to repair. 

     6.   INSURANCE.  Lessee shall obtain and maintain during 

the term of this Agreement appropriate liability coverage for 

the Leased Premises, and shall include the Lessor as an 

additional insured.  Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of 

the certificate of insurance upon request. 

Lessor shall obtain and maintain during the term of this 

Agreement appropriate liability coverage for the Leased Premises, 

and shall include the Lessee as an additional insured.  Lessor 

shall provide Lessee with a copy of the certificate of insurance 

upon request.  Such coverage is intended to be in force and 

effective when the Leased Premises are used by authorized and/or 

unauthorized third parties.

7. SUBLETTING AND ASSIGNMENTS.  Lessee shall not assign 

this Agreement or enter into any sublease Agreement without the 

prior written consent of Lessor.  Any attempted assignment of 

sublease by Lessee without prior written consent of Lessor is null 

and void and is a breach of the conditions of this Agreement.  If 

Lessor shall consent to an assignment or sublease, any such consent 

shall not be deemed to be a consent to any subsequent assignment 

or sublease. 

8. RELIEF FROM LIABILITY.  While Lessee is using and/or is 

otherwise in control of the Leased Premises, Lessee releases Lessor 

from liability for any personal injury or damage to personal 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 5 of 117



 

 

 

5 of 6 

property of Lessee, Lessee's employees, or Lessee's business 

invitees not arising from the negligence or intentional acts of 

Lessor or Lessor's agents or employees.  Lessee, in addition, 

shall indemnify and hold harmless Lessor, its successors, and 

agents, and assigns from and against any claim, loss, or expense 

arising from or related to Lessee's actions, or failure to act 

where or when required to do so, for those of Lessee's employees 

or Lessee's business invitees, and for those of Lessee's 

sublessees, their employees, and invitees, and such obligation 

shall include reasonable attorney's fees. 

While Lessor is using and/or is otherwise in control of the 

Leased Premises, Lessor releases Lessee from liability for any 

personal injury or damage to personal property of Lessor, Lessor's 

employees, or Lessor's business invitees not arising from the 

negligence or intentional acts of Lessee or Lessee's agents or 

employees.  Lessor, in addition, shall indemnify and hold harmless 

Lessee, its successors, and agents, and assigns from and against 

any claim, loss, or expense arising from or related to Lessor's 

actions, or failure to act where or when required to do so, for 

those of Lessor's employees or Lessor's business invitees, and for 

those of Lessor's sublessees, their employees, and invitees, and 

such obligation shall include reasonable attorney's fees.

9.  RULES AND REGULATIONS.  In addition to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, Lessee shall be bound by the Rules 

and Regulations applicable to all Lessees which Rules and 

Regulations are attached to this Agreement.  Lessor shall have the 

right during the term of this lease to alter, amend, or modify 

these Rules and Regulations, provided that any alteration, 

amendment, or modification shall serve the purpose of preserving 

the Leased Premises and the quiet enjoyment of all Lessees. No 

alteration, amendment, or modification shall become effective as 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 6 of 117



 

 

 

6 of 6 

to Lessee until Lessee shall have been provided with a written 

copy of the altered, amended, or modified Rules and Regulations by 

mail, posting, or delivery to the Leased Premises. Lessee agrees 

that a violation of the Rules and Regulations shall be a breach of 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that upon any 

violation, Lessor shall be permitted to exercise any and all 

remedies provided for in this Agreement. 

10. SUBORDINATION.  The parties acknowledge and agree that 

this Agreement is under, subject, and subordinate to any and all 

mortgages and security interests that presently encumber the 

property or that in the future may encumber the property of which 

the Leased Premises is a part. 

11. RIGHT OF ENTRY.  Lessor, Lessor's agent, and persons 

authorized by Lessor shall have the right to enter upon the Leased 

Premises at all reasonable times to inspect, and for such other 

lawful activities that do not unreasonable interfere with Lessee's 

use of the Leased Premises. 

12. UTILITIES. Lessee shall be responsible for obtaining 

electrical power to the field.  Lessee shall be responsible for 

the cost incurred for the electric service. 

13. BINDING EFFECT.  This Agreement shall be binding upon 

the heirs, executors, personal representatives, successors, and 

assigns of the parties hereto. 

  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 7 of 117



 

 

 

7 of 6 

 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 8 of 117



Memo 
To:  Council 

From:  Don 

Date:  April 15, 2024 

Re:  Bellefonte Teener Baseball Club Request 

 
I received an email from Jeremy Lucas who oversees the Bellefonte Teener Baseball 
Club.  He is working with the Bellefonte School District Athletic Director to utilize the 
Teener League Field for Junior High Baseball.   After his discussions with the Athletic 
Director, he is requesting a change to our Agreement. Specifically, the Term section 
where he is asking the term of the agreement coincide with the Bellefonte Governor’s 
Park Field Agreement.   Currently the agreement is a year-to-year agreement 
whereas the Governor’s Park was drafted for 15 years.   I have placed a draft copy of 
the agreement in the packet with language that will make the two agreements expire 
at the same time.  The revised draft language is in “red” font under the section 
“Term”.   
 
In addition, Mr. Lucas is requesting to change the paint color of the dugouts, 
concession stand and pressbox at the field from hunter green to the same color red 
that was utilized at Governor’s Park.   Since the Teener League Field is located in a 
more residential area, I wanted Council to determine if this change in color is okay. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 9 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 10 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 11 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 12 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 13 of 117



� I 6ANGUET HALL 
OPEN TO !leLOH 

_j_ 

/2:>Z/ 
OFFIC.E 

• 

L __ 

I 

l=I ,�, I I ,_, /:io::a./ 
OFFIC.E SUITE OFFIC.E 

OFFIC.E 

tL /:.mo/ 
i�, OFFIC.E 1:mKI 

OFFIC.E OFFIC.E 

1 .mN I 
OFFIC.E 

!202.I!
OFFIC,E 

)leml !lO:lM!
OFFIC,E 

OFFIC,E I lQll I 
OFFIC,E 

Second Floor

smoke d.

Lamb Street Side

Spring street side

Attic /third floor acsess stairs only

Alyssa

Melissa

Gina Office Removed

Copier

Personnel 
Files

Steve

Don

Ralph

Julie

Barbi & Lori

Conference Room

Break Room

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 14 of 117

gthompson
Highlight



   
 

1 
 

 
 

 

 

Council Business Meeting  

AGENDA 

7:30 PM Monday, April 15th, 2024 

In-Person, Large Room,  

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 
 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS       

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits.   
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Bernier  
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

III.   ROLL CALL 

Mr. Bernier, President, North Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West   Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, South Ward  Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Ms. Dann, Vice-President, South Ward   Mr. Larson, Jr. Council Member  

Mr. Johnson, Pro Tempore, North Ward   Mayor Johnson, At Large  

Ms. McKean, West Ward    

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA  

Under Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council may not take official action on it with the 

following exceptions. Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies. Council may add a 

matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. The council must state why the action item is 

being added to the Agenda. Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding any action items listed on this meeting agenda or 

any comments in general. No deliberations will be entered into by Council at this time. Please sign in, come 

to the podium at the appropriate time, and state your name along with your address and which item you are 

speaking about. Please try to limit comments to three minutes maximum. 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
Campus and Community Sustainability Expo April 25, 2024. FYI, no action is requested. 

 

  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 15 of 117

http://www.cnet1.org/


 

2 
 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There will be 

no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for separate 

action.  

Finance Budget V. Actual March 2024 

Finance Budget V. Actual Summary March 2024 

General Council Meeting Minutes April 1, 2024 

Finance Campbell Durrant Invoice March 2024 

Finance Stover McGlaughlin Invoice March 2024 

Finance Treasurers Report March 2024 

Finance Voucher Summary March 2024 

Call for a Motion/ 2nd to approve the Consent Agenda.  

VIII. REPORTS 

Elected Official and Staff Reports 

Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor 

➢ Introduction of Acting Chief William Witmer  

➢ Proclamation-Watershed Cleanup Day April 20, 2024 

➢ Proclamation-National Small Business Week April 28-May 4, 2024 

Mayor Johnson Submitted 

Police 

➢ March 2024 Report 

Acting Chief 

Witmer 

Submitted 

Parking 

➢ March 2024 Parking Report 

Ms. McCullough Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA) 

Meetings are held in the large meeting room of the Armory Building unless otherwise 

stated.  

➢ HARB: Tuesday, April 23 at 8:30 a.m. 

➢ Planning Commission: Monday, May 13, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. 

➢ Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission: Thursday, May 16 at 6:00 p.m. 

at Marion Township. 

See memo for report and updates 

Ms. Thompson Submitted 

Nuisance Codes   Mr. Barr  

  Borough Manager   Mr. Stewart  Submitted 

 

Liaison Reports 

Reports will be submitted in writing for inclusion in the council meeting materials. Reports may include 

draft meeting minutes, notes, memos, etc. No verbal report is to be given unless there is a question regarding 

the report. If council action is requested, please clearly indicate it, including the wording, so that it can be 

stated on the council meeting agenda 

ADMINISTRATIVE LIAISON REPORT 

Bandshell/Performance Center Project Committee  Mr. Holderman   

Bellefonte Area Industrial Development Authority (BAIDA) Mr. Holderman  

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services  Mr. Rhoat  Submitted 

Bellefonte Intervalley Chamber of Commerce Ms. Brooks   

Bellefonte Police Pension Board Mr. Stewart   

Centre County 2024 Solar & EV Charger Co-Op Ms. Brooks Submitted 

Centre County Boroughs Association  Ms. Dann   

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 16 of 117



 

3 
 

Centre County Government  Mr. Stewart   

CNET Board of Directors Mr. Holderman  Memo 

Downtown Bellefonte Inc. (DBI) Ms. Thompson  

Governor’s Park  Mr. Holderman Memo 

Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority Mr. Holderman  

Penn State University Sustainability Projects Mr. Holderman  Memo 

Shade Tree Commission Mr. Holderman Memo 

Union Cemetery Association  Mr. Holderman   

Zoning Hearing Board Ms. Thompson  

AUTHORITIES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Borough Authority – draft meeting minutes  Mr. D. Johnson  Submitted 

Centre County Airport Authority – the regular March meeting was cancelled.   Mr. D. Johnson   

COMMISSIONS / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Civil Service Commission Mr. Brachbill  

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission  Mr. D. Johnson   

Spring Creek Watershed Commission  Mr. Brachbill   

 SPECIAL COMMITTEES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Centre County Library Board  Ms. Cleeton Submitted 

Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) Public Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Talleyrand Park Committee  Ms. Dann    

Workplace Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill Submitted 

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS / APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission (NVJPC) Ms. Thompson  

Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO)  Mr. D. Johnson   

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS BY CENTRE COUNTY BOROUGHS 

ASSOCIATION  

LIAISON REPORT 

PA State Association of Boroughs (PSAB) Board of Directors  Mr. Brachbill   

PSAB Resolutions Committee Ms. Dann  
 

IX.         CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 
An Executive Session on personnel matters was held on April 10th. FYI, no council action is needed.   

➢ Council formal acceptance of resignations from Officer Matthew Pollock, Officer Jason Brower, and Chief 

Shawn Weaver.  Motion/2nd to accept the resignations. 

➢ Council formal designation of Detective William Witmer as Acting Bellefonte Borough Police Chief.  

Motion/2nd to approve Detective William Witmer as Acting Police Chief. 

➢ Council action to select police officer candidates from Bellefonte’s Eligibility List.  Acting Chief Witmer is 

recommending the selection of Andrew Hurd and Lisa Larken. Motion/2nd to select Andrew Hurd and Lisa 

Larken from the Eligibility List and to make a formal offer to hire. 

➢ Council approval of Borough Manager to begin the hiring process for a permanent Chief of Police. Motion/2nd to 

have Borough Manager start the hiring process for a permanent Chief of Police.   

Borough office move to the Armory Building.  Consider hiring movers to move borough office contents to the Armory 

building offices.  This would be in place of using in-house borough labor forces as time allows.  Motion/2nd to approve 

hiring movers for the work as described.   
 

X.           NEW BUSINESS 

John Claar Excavating Certificate for Payment No. 4 of $34,297.82 for the Parkview Heights Stormwater Management 

Project. Motion/ 2nd to remit payment to John Claar Excavating for the Parkview Heights Stormwater 

Management Project Application No. 4 of $34,297.82. 

Memo from Assistant Borough Manager on various projects and updates within the Borough. FYI, no Council action 

needed. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 17 of 117



 

4 
 

Memo from Finance Director inviting Council to attend the Real Estate Tax Collectors Meeting scheduled for April 23, 

2024 at 6:00 pm. FYI, no Council action needed. 

Spring Leaf Pickup will be Monday, April 22nd-Friday, April 26th, 2024. FYI, no Council action needed. 

Teener League Field Agreement Amendment. Motion/2nd to approve the amended Teener League Field Agreement 

from a year to year agreement to a 11-year agreement.  

Teener League Field Dugouts, Press Box and Concession Stands paint color change. Motion/2nd to approve the color 

change from hunter green to red that matches the Governor’s Park Baseball Field.  
 

XI.    ADJOURNMENT 

The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close as possible to 9:00 PM 

The Council Code of Conduct and the 2024 List of Goals/action items will be included with each Agenda.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 18 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 19 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 20 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 21 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 22 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 23 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 24 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 25 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 26 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 27 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 28 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 29 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 30 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 31 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 32 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 33 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 34 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 35 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 36 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 37 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 38 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 39 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 40 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 41 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 42 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 43 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 44 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 45 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 46 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 47 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 48 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 49 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 50 of 117



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL 

                           Regular Meeting 

  MEETING MINUTES 

April 1, 2024 - 7:30 p.m. 
236 West Lamb Street, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

The April 1, 2024 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 p.m. 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier, President 

     Mr. Randall Brachbill  

     Ms. Deborah Cleeton  

     Ms. Barbara Dann, Vice President 

     Mr. Douglas Johnson, Pro Tempore  

     Ms. Shawna McKean 

     Ms. Rita Purnell 

     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick 

     Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

     Mr. Christian Larson, Jr. Council Member 

     Mayor Buddy Johnson      

   

STAFF PRESENT  Mr. Ralph Stewart, Borough Manager 

    Mr. Don Holderman, Assistant Borough Manager  

    Ms. Julie Brooks, Assistant Superintendent of Public Works 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official 

action on it with some exceptions. The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real 

emergencies. Council may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. 

The Council should state the reason why the action item is being added to the agenda. Council 

may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

NONE 

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT - Agenda and Non-Agenda/General Items and Comments 

Rita Purnell, council member, asked if there is a proposed date for the installation of the traffic 

light at Parkview Blvd and Zion Road. It was clarified that this project is listed on tonight’s 

agenda. The project is currently in the design phase. There was a recent accident at the 

intersection.   

 

VI.  COMMUNICATIONS  

Centre Centre 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 51 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 52 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

April 1, 2024 

Page 3 

 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yayYea  

 

Brachbill motioned to approve the Stover McGlaughlin Invoice, in March 2024. Dann seconded. 

Discussion included Dann asking for clarification of who approves each invoice. Mr. Stewart 

clarified that he does review each invoice. Mr. Holderman commented that he also may review 

invoices.  Roll Call Vote. Motion carried. 

Mr. Kent Bernier               yayYea Ms. Shawna McKean                  yayYea 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yayYea Ms. Rita Purnell                           yayYea 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yayYea Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               yayYea 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yayYea Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             yayYea 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yayYea  

 

VIII. REPORTS   

Mayor Johnson  

Mayor Johnson read a Proclamation regarding  Pennsylvania 811 (PA One Call) Safe Digging 

Month. April is Safe Digging Month. Residents are reminded that they should call PA One Call 3 

days before digging on any property. This process can help ensure that all underground utilities 

are protected and workers/property owners/neighbors are safe.  

 

Junior Council Member Report 

April 2024 Report  

• The 4th quarter just started. 

• Students created a student store. 

• The Underclassmen prom is scheduled for May 4th, 2024. 

 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB) 

• The Monday, April 8, 2024, Planning Commission meeting has been canceled due to no 

projects for review. 

• The next HARB meeting is Tuesday, April 10 at 8:30 a.m., in the large meeting room of 

the Armory Building. 

• The Zoning Hearing Board will hear a variance request on Wednesday, April 10, 2024, at 

5:00 p.m. in the large meeting room of the Armory Building for setback relief from the 

provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 575-71: swimming pools: relief from the 

minimum rear yard setback for 512 E. Curtin Street. 

 

IX.  CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

On Saturday, April 6th, 2024, Bellefonte Borough staff will demonstrate the operation of our 

compost bagging equipment the Borough recently purchased with the assistance of a DEP 902 

Grant. This demonstration will occur at the Musser Lane composting site near the compost pad. 

Borough residents may show up anytime between 10:00 AM- 12:00 PM to see the equipment in 

operation and learn how the Borough is generating its compost from residents like you. Anyone 

who stops by will receive a free 35-pound bag of compost to take home. No council action is 

needed. A council memberJohnson reminded residents that the Composting site on Musser Lane 

officially opens this weekend and that this is the first weekend that yard refuse containers will 

be collected via curbside pickup. Holderman stated that according to our ordinance, Ccurbside 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 53 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 54 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 55 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 56 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 57 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 58 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 59 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 60 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 61 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 62 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 63 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 64 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 65 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 66 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 67 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 68 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 69 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 70 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 71 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 72 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 73 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 74 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 75 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 76 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 77 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 78 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 79 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 80 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 81 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 82 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 83 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 84 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 85 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 86 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 87 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 88 of 117



 

 

 

 

          

PROCLAMATION 
 

 WHEREAS, The Borough of Bellefonte recognizes and values the dedication and 

 entrepreneurial spirit within our community; and 

 

 WHEREAS, small businesses are the backbone of Pennsylvania's economy; and 

 

 WHEREAS, small businesses keep our community, the state, and America's economies 

 growing strong; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the President of the United States has proclaimed National Small Business 

 Week  every year since 1963 to highlight the programs and services available to 

 entrepreneurs through the U.S. Small Business Administration and other government 

 agencies; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Borough of Bellefonte supports and joins in this national effort to help 

 America's small businesses do what they do best, create jobs, and ensure that our 

 communities remain as vibrant tomorrow as they are today; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor of Borough of Bellefonte, Centre County, hereby 

 recognizes April 28-May 4, 2024 as 

 

"NATIONAL SMALL BUSINESS WEEK" 

 

 in the Borough of Bellefonte and reminds individuals of the importance of this 

 community celebration which acknowledges and celebrates the achievements made by 

 small businesses, both locally and nationally. 
  

 

          __________________________________________ 

             Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor  

         Borough of Bellefonte 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 89 of 117



 

 
          

PROCLAMATION 

WATERSHED CLEANUP DAY 

April 20, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, 

 

 

 

 

 

WHEREAS, 

Bellefonte Borough has participated in Clearwater 

Conservancy’s Watershed Cleanup Day for the last 

28 years; and 

 

during last year's event, 500 volunteers helped 

remove and properly dispose of 8,246 pounds of 

trash collected from roadsides, parks, streams, and 

forests throughout Centre County; and 

 

Bellefonte Borough is committed to improving our 

environment for the benefit of our citizens and visitors. 

 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Mayor Buddy Johnson, do 

hereby proclaim April 20, 2024, to be Watershed 

Cleanup Day in the Borough of Bellefonte and 

encourage all staff and citizens to participate in the 

event. 

 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my 

hand and caused to be affixed, the great seal of the 

Borough of Bellefonte, this 15th day of April 2024. 

 

 

          __________________________________________ 

             Gene “Buddy” Johnson, Mayor  

         Borough of Bellefonte 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 90 of 117



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT 

MARCH 2024 

HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

• The Bellefonte Community Easter egg hunt in Talleyrand Park concluded
on March 30, 2024. The police department would like to thank the local
fire companies and EMS services for their time and devotion in giving back
to the community.

• The police department has updated the police vehicle fleet with a new
2023 Ford Explorer.

• The police department has concluded the civil service process by
establishing an eligibility list. We are excited about the possibility of
adding new personnel to our team.

• All officers are currently finishing the mandated continuing education
required by the Municipal Police Officers’ Education and Training
Commission. All officers are required to have 16 hours of continuing
education each year.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 91 of 117



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT      
MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 
 

OFFENSES 
OCCURRED 

MONTH 
2024 
YTD 

Alarms 8 18 

Assault 1 1 

Child Abuse 4 6 

Criminal Mischief 3 10 

Disorderly Conduct 13 32 

Domestics 13 28 

Drug Related 1 3 

DUI 1 3 

Harassment 7 19 

Suspicious Activity 17 41 

Theft 4 15 

Trespass 5 8 

All Others 338 1090 

TOTAL 415 1254 

 
CALLS MONTH 2024 YTD 

Handled by BPD 415 1254 

Off Duty 5 12 

TOTAL 420 1266 

 
ARRESTS MONTH 2024 YTD 

Felony 0 1 

Misdemeanor 6 14 

Summary 10 20 

TOTAL 16 35 

 
MILEAGE MONTH YTD 

34-1 N 110,207 

34-2 E 136,116 

34-3 X 125,322 

34-4 T 77,315 

34-5 M 350 

34-6 ON 30,980 

34-7 TH N/A 

 

 

PAYMENTS 
RECEIVED 

MONTH 
2024 
YTD 

MDJ $1688.00 N/A 

Probation $462.27 N/A 

TOTAL $2,150.64 N/A 

 
ACCIDENTS MONTH 2024 YTD 

Reportable 4 7 

Non-Reportable 13 39 

TOTAL 17 42 

 
OFFICERS’ TIME MONTH 2024 YTD 

Regular Hours 1920 4824 

Overtime Hours 58 274 

Reimbursed 
Overtime 

0 0 

Training 0 136 

TOTAL 1978 5098 

 

SRO MONTH 2024 YTD 
Number of Incidents 61 206 

Arrests 2 2 

Traffic (School Zone) 0 22 

Hours Worked 310 1030 

 
PARKING MONTH 2024 YTD 

Hours Worked 245.5 554.5 

Tickets Issued 152 785 

Revenue $14,301 N/A 

 

TRAFFIC MONTH 2024 YTD 
Stops 14 122 

Citations Filed 58 101 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 92 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 93 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 94 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 95 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 96 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 97 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 98 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 99 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 100 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 101 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 102 of 117



*** FYI: I will be on vacation Thursday, May 2 through Monday, May 6 and will likely not have a report 
for the May 6th Council meeting.  
 

HARB: 
 
HARB met on Tuesday, April 9 at 8:30 a.m. Due to a recording issue, only the first 19 minutes of 
the meeting was recorded. I will work with Ms. Guizar to generate the minutes for this meeting as 
best as we can.  
 
There were no projects to review, but I went over the many administrivia approvals and we 
discussed various topics, such as outreach and education, administrative approval guidelines, and 
the updated design guidelines. It was also discussed moving the meetings to the evenings to be 
more convenient for the applicants and public to attend. The HARB members in attendance were in 
agreement about this being a better time to meet for the general public.  
 
Frank Grumbine, PHMC Community Preservation Coordinator for the Central Region, was in 
attendance and spoke to many of these topics. It was great to have him there, and HARB agreed it 
would be beneficial for him to come to Council once a year to provide a brief overview of historic 
preservation and its significance in Bellefonte Borough.  
 
Frank and I spent some time reviewing reports for our CLG and walked the historic district. It’s 
always great to have a chance to learn from Frank as he has a great deal of knowledge of historic 
architecture and preservation.   
 
Administrative Approvals (more information can be found on the HARB agenda):  
 * 121-123 N. Allegheny Street – roof repair 
 243 N. Allegheny Street – sidewalk replacement 
 429 N. Spring Street – wall cap for ventilation 
 * 140 W. High Street – rear roof replacement  
 120 S. Water Street (Studio 120 Bellefonte) – exterior paint 
 120 S. Water Street (Studio 120 Bellefonte) – business sign 
 * 102 S. Allegheny Street (Courthouse) – fencing  
 105 N. Allegheny Street (Pap’s Antiques & More) – temporary signs 
 * 113 S. Spring Street – shingle roof replacement  
 126 S. Allegheny Street (Magpie’s Nest) – business sign 
 349 E. Curtin Street – shingle roof replacement  
 * 130 S. Allegheny Street (The Print Factory) – door and transom window replacement  

 
* These projects require a building permit from Centre Region Code Administration and have been 
indicated on the issued COA.  
 
The next HARB meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, April 23 at 8:30 a.m. in the large meeting room 
in the Armory Building.  
 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 103 of 117



PLANNING: 
 
The Planning Commission will meet on Monday, May 13, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. in large meeting room 
of the Armory Building. Currently there is one Subdivision project for review.  
 
The Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO) Active Transportation Plan 
Steering Committee Meeting has their second meeting on April 25. If you’ll recall, I was invited to 
serve on this committee as a representative of Bellefonte Borough and the Nittany Valley Joint 
Planning Region.  
 
The next Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission meeting will be held Thursday, May 16 at 6:00 
p.m. at Marion Township.  
 
Just a reminder about the CCMPO public engagement period:  https://ccatp-
centrecog.hub.arcgis.com/    
 

 
 

  
ZONING: 

 
The Zoning Hearing Board met on Wednesday, April 10 at 5:00 p.m. in “old” Council Chambers at 
the Borough Building. The hearing was for a dimensional variance for setback relief from the 
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 575-71: swimming pools: relief from the minimum 
rear yard setback for 512 E. Curtin Street (parcel 32-104-,095-,0000-), located in the Bellefonte 
Borough Suburban Residential District (R-1). 
 
The board granted the variance for the 16-foot pool setback.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 104 of 117

https://ccatp-centrecog.hub.arcgis.com/
https://ccatp-centrecog.hub.arcgis.com/
https://ccatp-centrecog.hub.arcgis.com/


CALL TO ORDER:  
 
Attendance: 

Members Alternates Guests 
Sam McGinley, Chair Gay Dunne  
Megan Tooker Robert Wagner (CRCA)  
Walt Schneider Amy Kelchner  
Mike Leakey   
Marc McMaster   
Maria Day   
Philip Ruth   

 
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: January 23, 2024 meeting minutes 
 
Public Comment: 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:  
  
Project Review: None 
 
Administrative Approvals:  
 
 * 121-123 N. Allegheny Street – roof repair 

o Replace black shingle roof with Pinnacle Pristine architectural shingle, color 
Majestic Shake. Contractor: Equity Roofing 
 

 243 N. Allegheny Street – sidewalk replacement 
o Remove and replace existing concrete sidewalk along North side of house. 

Sidewalk goes between the houses from the public walk to the back yard. 
Approximately 4'x42'. Replace set of (2) concrete steps onto rear porch with 
same. Concrete to match Bellefonte Borough approved colors. 
 

 429 N. Spring Street – wall cap for ventilation 
o Wall cap for range hood ventilation system. Hood will vent to rear of house to 

the left of the set of kitchen windows on the first floor. The wall cap will 
include a backdraft damper. A passive vent will include a backdraft damper to 
replace a defunct dryer vent to replace air volume expelled by the range 
hood. 
 

 * 140 W. High Street – rear roof replacement  
o Re-roof rear portion of building with architectural shingles to match from 

portion, done in 2011. Color: Charcoal 
 

 120 S. Water Street (Studio 120 Bellefonte) – exterior paint 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 105 of 117



o Paint the exterior doors and outside trim of building. Color: Black, Glidden, 
exterior flat 
 

 120 S. Water Street (Studio 120 Bellefonte) – business sign 
o Size: 32” 25”; Colors: green, white, orange. Materials and description: 

Alumapanel, Victorian Signs & Graphics. Placement: Above door on right side 
of building. Hanger is already there. 
 

 * 102 S. Allegheny Street (Courthouse) – fencing  
o Design and replacement of the existing fence (North and South sides) of East 

High Street, adjacent and parallel to the existing Centre County Courthouse 
building. Additional fencing will also be constructed from the sidewalks to the 
existing courthouse steps on each side of the building. There will also be new 
fencing installed to the east along each side of the courthouse. Montage II 
Classic, metal, black. Height of fence varies depending on location. 
 

 105 N. Allegheny Street (Pap’s Antiques & More) – temporary signs 
o 22” X 29” wooden sign, colors purple and white. Will be hung above door 

from an existing pole. A vinyl sign with painted letters will be hung on the 
awning. Both of these signs are temporary until a more permanent sign can 
be made for the business. Signs will be permitted until May 1, 2024 and may 
be considered for extension at that time. I’m working with business owner on 
the exterior paint project.  
 

 * 113 S. Spring Street – shingle roof replacement  
o Replacement of existing roofing shingles with new CertainTeed Landmark 

architectural shingle. Color: Georgetown Gray.  
 

 126 S. Allegheny Street (Magpie’s Nest) – business sign 
o Business sign. Size: 19” X 32” X 1” ; Color: white and blue ; Materials: PVS. 

Placement: Left of storefront window, left of awning. Laser cut PVC to match 
company logo, white background with blue lettering. 
 

 349 E. Curtin Street – shingle roof replacement  
o Current shingle roof is leaking and causing internal house damage. Replace 

current shingle roof with Owens Corning architectural shingle, color: 
Williamsburg Gray. This single will match the shingles on the shed, approved 
by HARB on 9/14/2021. Contractor: Double L Construction LLC. 
 

 * 130 S. Allegheny Street – door and transom window replacement  
o Replace the entry door and install a new transom window in the existing 

opening that is currently boarded up and previously had an air conditioning 
unit. Current door and transom opening are not historically significant and this 
would be an improvement on the current condition of the exterior. 

 
Historically wouldn’t have a transom that big, but it’s not clear what the 
architectural history is of the entryway. Even though the scale is wrong on the 
transom window, it fits the space that is currently boarded up and previously had 
an AC unit. The storefront has been vacant for several years, so these 
modifications would be an improvement over an empty storefront.  

 
* These projects require a building permit from Centre Region Code Administration and 
have been indicated on the issued COA.  
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 106 of 117



 
Old Business: 
 225 W. Lamb Street – retroactive review of metal roof installation  
 408 E. Linn Street – retroactive review of window installation 

 
Both of these projects were denied approval by HARB. On February 5, 2024, Council 
approved both of these projects after a lengthy discussion. I have included the minutes from 
that council meeting in your packet.  
 
New Business: None 
 
Information / Discussion Items: 

 
 I’ve included the feedback from the poster board questions that were presented at 

the February 27, 2024 Historic Design Guidelines Public Meeting.  
o We had a fantastic attendance for the meeting: over 40 people. The 

community provided valuable feedback for HARB and the Landmarks team 
regarding the necessary updates to the Design Guidelines. Among the 
feedback was a general consensus that high standards for our Historic 
District was critical in its preservation. A few community members mentioned 
a desire to find a way to promote our Historic District more publicly and also 
the need for education and guidance regarding the standards.  

o Landmarks SGA gave a brief presentation providing the history and 
importance of historic preservation and specifically the value it brings to 
Bellefonte Borough. They covered the rationale and process for updating the 
Bellefonte Historic Design Guidelines. I helped to address specific questions 
about our town and the ordinance. Community members were then asked to 
add their feedback to a series of questions that were posted around the room.  

o photos of the event can be accessed here: https://bellefontepa-
my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/gthompson_bellefontepa_gov/ElKUKyCU0I
RGjpfhKIys628BbB16SnVyFrJ4jpnsgd7nZA?e=cmNNSZ 

 
Frank Grumbine will be present at the meeting to discuss items that have come up for 
discussion. These are the items that have been mentioned:  

o standards for Administrative Approvals 
o HARB involvement in evaluating accuracy of published historical information.  
o Historic tablets around town 
o Council motion on HARB denials / enforcement / etc.  

 
Adjournment: 
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 107 of 117



Bellefonte Historic District Design Guidelines: Public Mee�ng 
Poster Ques�ons: Feedback 

February 27, 2024 

 

1. When you hear the phrases “design guidelines” or “historic district standards,” 
what are the first words or thoughts that come to mind? 

• Are they easy to understand and relevant to my style of building? 
• Incen�ves not punishments 
• A guideline is just that – no teeth to punish. State College’s architectural review board is 

not nearly as draconian; people want to live there 
• Checks and balances 
• Higher maintenance costs 
• (hopefully) consistent value 
• Good idea 
• Clarity 
• A roadmap for restora�on, maintenance, and rehabilita�on 
• To[o] much government in ppl’s lives 
• Added cost 
• Added �me 
• Consistency in appearance 
• Beauty – but my concern is ability to make buildings more sustainable and less fossil fuel 

– dependent within historic character 
 
 

2. What do you like and value about Bellefonte as a property owner, business 
owner, resident, or shopper? 

• Lovely architecture being cared about and for 
• I love where we live and the beauty of the buildings 
• Walkability (we really need a litle grocery store in the CBD) 
• The sense of history 
• The ambiance, The friendliness, The walkability, Safe streets 
• Historic beauty, Walk ability, Ac�ve downtown 
• I love how safe and beau�ful the town is 
• Everything but HARB 
• (business owner response) history, sense of community, having fun, family ac�vi�es 
• Historic buildings that support making Bellefonte a des�na�on. We purchased 

downtown loca�on to be part of that vision.  
 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 108 of 117



3. What do you see as roadblocks to improving your building or developing in 
Bellefonte? 

• Money 
• HARB is a huge roadblock to all in the historic district! Too stringent and not uniform 
• Funding 
• HARB: all members should reside in district 
• funding and guidelines consistency 
• materials cost 
• affordable changes, funding materials 
• would be nice if HARB had a list of contractors who work with them and understand the 

Historic District 
• money, yes, but also ability to make houses more energy efficient 
• juggling renova�ons with contractor schedules 
• Money! No or limited help with funding or grants 
• Funding 
• Even though I am an income producing property, I never qualify for programs because I 

live there – money 
• The fact that my whole property is visible. I have no freedom to improve even my 

backyard without guidelines 
• Engaged HARB members to help owners with cost effec�ve ways to maintain historic 

proper�es. We learned(?) there are good op�ons and contractors 
• People don’t want to be told what to do with their property, so they do what they want 

and get away with it.  
 
 

4. If you were to make improvements to Bellefonte and the physical appearance of 
its build environment, what would some of those improvements be? 

• More thought given to commercial facades. Take note of Winchester VA – Vibrant 
businesses adhering to historic standards.  

• Public art, mural, sculpture, etc.  
• Hardscape oversight / allowing alterna�ve to concrete sidewalks 
• Get rid of u�lity lines! 10 lines on Lamb street, ugly poles everywhere 
• Open green spaces with natural plan�ng around 
• Signage 
• Streetscape 
• mixed use 
• more green space and community gardens and gathering spaces within downtown 
• right of way flower plan�ng, not just grass 
• street ligh�ng in residen�al areas and sidewalk repair 
• No neon bright signs, warm-tone street lights. Not blue/white LED style 
• Tree maintenance 
• Dilapida�on does not equal historic; leverage modern and durable materials 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 109 of 117



 
 

5. Do you have any favorite buildings in Bellefonte? If so, which one(s)? 
• Art Museum 
• Bush Arcade 
• B&Bs 
• Corner of Allegheny & Cur�n – Stone house 
• The 400 block of N. Spring on the west side w/ the terrace stone walls 
• Exchange building 
• Dart House on Allegheny Street – Great project adhering to historic standards! 
• Post office 
• The Anne Keichline on East Linn  
• Reynolds Mansion 
• The Courthouse 
• The Brockerhoff House 

 

6. In terms of maintenance and upkeep of your building, what do you experience 
the most challenges with? 

• Finding qualified contractors to do the work 
• Our very limited budget trying to maintain the Brockerhoff House 
• Fire safety 
• Paint chipping on brick 
• Nice to have veted contractor list. We learned the hard way.  
• Inconsistency with HARB recommenda�ons depending on poli�cal environment  
• Removing paint from brick 
• What did a house look like before aluminum siding was installed 
• Yes – qualified contractors 
• HARB: knowing what HARB’s expecta�ons are; inconsistent responses 
• Finding people to do quality work at a decent price 
• Finding people that know how to work on historic proper�es 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 110 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 111 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 112 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 113 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 114 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 115 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 116 of 117



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet April 15, 2024

Page 117 of 117


	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 04152024
	WORK SESSION--Teener Field Agreement.03232023,REV 1
	WORK SESSION--Memo.Teener Baseball Club Questions
	WORK SESSION--Teener League Dugout and Concession Pictures
	WORK SESSION--Armory Building 2nd Floor Plan
	COUNCIL MEETING--AGENDA 04152024
	COMMUNICATIONS--Campus and Community Sustainability Expo April 25, 2024
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual March 2024
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual Summary March 2024
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes.04012024.DRAFT
	CONSENT--Campbell Durrant Invoice March 2024
	CONSENT--Stover McGlaughlin Invoice March 2024
	CONSENT--Treasurer Report March 2024
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary March 2024
	REPORTS. MAYOR--Proclamation-Watershed Cleanup Day April 20, 2024
	REPORTS. MAYOR--Proclamation-National Small Buisness Week April 28-May 4, 2024
	REPORTS. POLICE--Report March 2024
	REPORTS. PARKING--Permit Reports March 2024
	REPORTS. OCA--Memo to Council and packet materials.04152024
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 4.15.2024
	OCA--HARB
	HARB Meeting Agenda 4.9.2024
	Public Meeting questions feedback and photos
	Public Meeting questions feedback
	Photos of Posters with Stickies
	IMG_3949
	IMG_3950
	IMG_3952
	IMG_3953
	IMG_3954
	IMG_3955
	IMG_3956




	REPORT. BOROUGH MANAGER--March 2024 Report
	LIAISION REPORTS. Centre County Library Board January 25, 2024
	LIAISON REPORTS. Authority Meeting Minutes.04022024.DRAFT
	LIAISON REPORTS. Bellefonte EMS 1st Qtr report 2024
	LIAISON REPORTS. Centre County 2024 Solar & EV Charger Co-Op March 2024
	Memo to Council solar co-op update April 15, 2024
	Centre County Co-op Flyer 2024

	LIAISON REPORTS. Workplace Safety Committee Packet March 27, 2024
	Agenda.03272024 on letterhead
	Safety Committee Meeting Minutes.02212024
	Safety Inspection Report WWTP 1st Qtr
	Route Safety-Solid Waste Quiz

	NEW BUSINESS--John Claar Excavating Certificate for Payment No. 4 for Parkview Heights Stormwater Management Project
	NEW BUSINESS--Memo from Assistant Borough Manager on various projects and updates within the Borough
	NEW BUSINESS--Memo from Finance Director
	REPORTS. OCA--Memo to Council and packet materials.04152024.pdf
	OCA Memo to Council for meeting of 4.15.2024
	OCA--HARB
	HARB Meeting Agenda 4.9.2024
	Public Meeting questions feedback and photos
	Public Meeting questions feedback
	Photos of Posters with Stickies
	IMG_3949
	IMG_3950
	IMG_3952
	IMG_3953
	IMG_3954
	IMG_3955
	IMG_3956







